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“THE GOLDEN CITV”

City of Yreka

Management’s Discussion and Analysis:

As management of the City of Yreka (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Yreka for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The management provides this discussion
and analysis to: 1) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, 2) provide
an overview of the City’s financial activity, and 3) identify changes in the City’s financial
position.

Financial Highlights:

In the statement of net assets, total net assets for the City of Yreka exceeded its
liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $34,027,208. Of this
amount, $9,170,929 of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Unrestricted net
assets can also be compared to the financial statement fund of governmental funds
ending fund balance of $5,079,528, and add in the proprietary.funds unrestricted
net assets of $4,091,401 for a total of $9,170,929. Ohe might think of unrestricted
net assets as the City’s total equity or capital balance.

The governmental activities total net assets of $19,479,895 increased by
$2,543,267 from the restated prior fiscal year 2007-08 total of $16,936,628. The
increase in net assets is primarily due to $1.8 million net increase in capital assets.
The governmental funds unreserved ending fund balance increased by $625,107
in 2008-09, noteworthy given the contracting revenue and expenditure operating
environment for the year.

The business type activities total net assets and the ending fund balance of
$14,547,313 increased by a modest $387,415 from the prior fiscal year 2007-08
of $14,159,898.

The City continues to reduce expenses, to reflect its declining tax revenues. As a service-
based organization, personnel costs are closely managed and the City evaluates vacancies
in staffing and has worked with the bargaining units to establish a rate cap on the
employer’s share of health benefits costs.
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Over the past 10 years, the City has completed numerous master plan studies and taken
inventory of its assets, with the last study completed December 2007. In these studies,
engineers have identified over $29 million of capital improvements needed within the
next five to ten years for the City’s infrastructure assets of streets, water and sewer
utilities. That roughly translates to about $7,800 per household.

The City Council realized it needed outreach to the community to educate the residents of
the City’s problems and engage them in being part of the solution. As part of the public
outreach, the City of Yreka started publishing in March 2008 the Yreka City newsletter to
outline issues, interests and inform the citizens of Yreka. The newsletter is included with
the residents’ monthly utility bills. Concurrent with that project, the City began work on
its first website. The City’s website went live December 2008, has been operational for
over one year and strives to be informative, easy to use and navigate. The website
encourages citizen participation incorporating links to community and service
organizations, and includes a community calendar at www.ci.yreka.ca.us.

In 2008-09 the City Council acted on the following expenditure control measures:

¢ The City transferred the senior services grant to the Madrone hospice, a non-profit
organization. The City continues to assist the program with a cash allocation, and
transfer of three new buses to the associated senior transportation program.

* The City Council made the tough decisions to match operating revenues with
expenditures in the general fund. One cost controlling measure was the
cooperation of bargaining units in negotations and agreement of 12 furlough days
to reduce personnel costs and no cost of living increases to open contracts.

The City Council recognizes that there is work remaining and is focused on the City’s
economic development efforts to address its fiscal problems. The City is financially
strong, working to remain fiscally responsible and serve its residents.

Single-Family Residential Sewer Rate Comparison
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Above Is a comparative rate chart for residentinl sewer services. In 2009, the City of Yrehka will be in year two of n five-year
rate hike, inereasing to 542,00 per moath by 2012,
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City Public Works staft plowing snow in Yreka, photo taken January 31, 2008.

2008-09 Operational Highlights:

* In2008-09, the City completed $863,829 of work for a cumulative completion of
$2,377,458 or 46% of the work on a $5,000,000 Stormwater Attenuation (Prop.
40) grant administered by the State Regional Water Quality Control Board. This
grant covers over 80% of the needed improvements that were identified in the
City’s storm drain master plan. This was the largest grant award received by the
City. This project includes storm drain detention ponds, Greenhorn Park
restoration and storm drain infrastructure repairs. The construction work for this
grant is expected to be completed by the fall of 2010.

» State Transportation Improvement Program grants totaling $1,013,140 were used
to repair and rehabilitate the City’s streets (Fourth Street and arterial street
overlays).

» The City has started work on the $1,501,000 Yreka Greenway Creek trails
project. The work fulfills some of the goals identified and developed in
Greenway Master Plan,

* The final two of four park restrooms and Greenhorn Park pedestrian bridge were
built utilizing state grant funds of Roberti Z’Berg Harris Prop. 40 and California
Housing and Community Development Workforce Housing awards. Two
restrooms are located in Greenhorn Park. The third restroom is located in Miner
Street Park, and the fourth restroom is located in the downtown Liberty Arts
Center. The downtown arts center was another community and city collaboration
which restored an historic building in downtown Yreka to house an non profit art
gallery and public restrooms. The pedestrian bridge is a landmark structure
adding to the development of a handicap accessible trail around the reservoir.
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Overview of the Financial Statements:

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Yreka’s
basic financial statements. The City of Yreka’s basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and
3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City of Yreka’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Yreka’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City of Yreka is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, an example would be the
reporting for capital leases.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of
Yreka that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

The governmental activities of the City of Yreka include general government, public
safety, recreation and culture, public works, planning and community development.

The business-type activities of the City of Yreka include water and wastewater
operations. ‘

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 2 through 3 this report.

Fund Financial Statements:

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City are divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds:

Governmental finds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
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the government-wide financial statements, governmental find financial statements focus
on near-term cash inflows and cash outflows of resources, as well as on ending fund
balances available at the end of the fiscal year.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities. The major funds within governmental funds include
the General Operating Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Special Grants Fund, and Streets and
Roads Fund,

The major governmental funds are presented in [a] the governmental fund balance sheet,
and [b] the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the governmental funds. The governmental fund is also combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. The City of Yreka adopts an annual appropriated budget
for each of its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement for the
governmental funds demonstrates compliance with the budget, and is located on pages 28
through 31 of this report.

Proprietary funds.

The City of Yreka maintains two different types of proprietary funds for its business-type
activities. These are also referred to as Enterprise Funds and are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City of Yreka uses enterprise funds to account for its water and
wastewater operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide separate information for the water and wastewater funds, each of
which is considered a major fund. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be
found on pages 7 through 9 of this report.

Fiduciary funds:

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. A fiduciary fund represents an agency fund, which is custodial in nature
(assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of operation. The
City no longer has any fiduciary funds.

Notes to the financial statements:

The notes provide additional information that is essential to fully understand the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 10 through 27 of this report.
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Other supplemental information:

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information which can be found on pages 28
through 38 of this report.

Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole:

Government-wide Financial Analysis:

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. The City of Yreka’s assets exceeded liabilities by $19,479,895 for
governmental activities and $14,547,313 for business type activities, or $34,027,208 in
total, at the close of 2008-09.

City of Yreka — Changes in Net Assets

Business-
Governmental Type
Total Net Assets for: Activities Activities Total
Fiscal Year 2007-08, as restated $16,936,628 $14,159,898 | $31,096,526
Fiscal Year 2008-09 19,479,895 14,547,313 | 34,027,208
Increase or (Decrease in Net Assets) $2,543,267 $387.415 | $2,930,682

The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery and equipment as well as infrastructure assets such as roads,
bridges, water and sewer systems), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still outstanding. The City of Yreka uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City of Yreka’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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The schedule below displays a year over year comparative summary of the City’s

governmental activities net assets:

City of Yreka — Governmental Activities Net Assets

Assets:

Current assets and other assets
Restricted assets

Non Current Assets

Total Assets
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Total net assets increased by 15.0%
or $2,543,267 from 2007-08. The
large increase is due to capital
outlay for road and street
rehabilitation.

Total liabilities decreased 5.0% due
to repayment of loan balances that
exceeded new debt and a reduction
in current liabilities.

Unrestricted net assets increased
14.0% or $625,107 from 2007-08,
in part due to an increase in the
ending fund balance, due to
expenditure control, where
revenues exceeded actual
expenditures.

Governmental Activities

Percentage

Change

2007-08 as the
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2007-08 2008-09 base year
$6.483,675  $6,901,374 6.4%
1,904,102 1,958,525 2.9%
13,881,150 15,688,131 13.0%
22,268,927 24,548,030 10.2%
2,153,850 1,988,240 -1.7%
3,178,449 3,079,895 -3.1%
5,332,299 5,068,135 -3.0%
10,560,210 12,441,842 17.8%
1,921,997 1,958,525 1.9%
4,434,421 5,079,528 14.0%
$16,936,628 $19,479,895 15.0%

Fourth Street paving and rehabilitation grant project, photo taken
10/5/2009.




The schedule below displays a year over year comparative summary of the City’s
business-type activities net assets:

City of Yreka — Business Type Activities Net Assets

Percentage
Business-Type Activities Change
2007-08 as the
Assets: 2007-08 2008-09 base year
Current assets and other assets $4,642,264  $4,363,328 -6.0%
Restricted assets 49,183 50,295 2.3%
Non Current Assets 11,815,428 12,356,707 4.6%
Toral Assets 16,506,875 16,770,330 1.6%
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities 395,888 539,482 36.3%
Long-term Liabilities 1,951,089 1,683,535 -13.7%
Total Liabilities 2,346,977 2,223,017 -5.3%
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,603,242 10,405,617 8.4%
Restricted 49,183 50,295 3%
Unrestricted 4,507,473 4,091,401 -0.2%
Total Net Assets  $14,159,898 $14,547.313 2. 7%

Total assets increased $263,455 or
1.6%, and total liabilities decreased by
$123,960 or -5.3% primarily due to
scheduled repayments on existing debt.
Current liabilities increased 36.3% due
to increases in customer accounts
payable. Overall, unrestricted net
assets decreased by -9.2% or $416,072
from 2007-08, primarily due the
increase in capital assets as the City
invested in water main replacements
and has commenced on multi-year
capital improvement project to the
water system.

treatment plﬂn
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Comparison of Government Wide General Revenues:

General revenues: 2007-08 200800 T
Governmental Business-type Governmental  Business-
Taxes: activities activities Total activities  type activities Total
Property $944,784 30 5944,784 $968,390 50 $968,390
Sales and use 2,306,552 0 2,306,552 1,964,509 0 1,964,509
Other 1,370,059 0 1,370,059 1,439,367 0 1,439367
Investment earnings 276,066 178,317 454 383 264,542 93,846 358,388
Other 225,486  (3,453,488) (3,228,002) 22,477 . (63,235) (40,738)
Loss on disposal of
capital assets (215,693)
Transfers (1,555,126} 1,355,126 0 0 0 0
Total general revenues 83,567,821 ($1,720,045) 51,847,776 | $4,443,590 $30,611 4,689,896
and transfers

Total general revenues increased in 2008-09 from 2007-08 by $2,842,120, primarily due
to the prior year’s $3,453,488 loss on the sale of the landfill. Transfers to be paid in
2007-08 included a $2,500,000 note receivable to Siskiyou County from the sanitary
landfill enterprise fund to the special revenue fund; less the repayment of a $1,000,000
interfund loan from the sanitary landfill fund to the general operating fund. In 2006-07,
the general fund lent $1,000,000 to the sanitary landfill enterprise fund to open sale
escrow that was repaid in 2007-08.

Sales and use tax revenues were down and are expected to remain lower in 2009-10.
Overall investment earnings in 2008-09 were lower than 2007-08, reflecting lower
investment rates, and in business type activities, lower investment balances and rates.

Other revenues for governmental activities, are lower in 2007-08 from 2008-09 due to a
$201,181 one-time insurance premium dividend received in 2007-08 from the Small
Cities Organized Risk Effort joint power authority.
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Comparison of Government Wide Program Revenues:
Year over Year

Progran Revenue 2007-08 2008-09 Change

Governmental activities:
General government $559,019 $638,942 $79,923
Planning and development 175,723 1,158,673 982,950
Parks and recreation 1,020,691 866,355 (154,336)
Public works administration - - -
Public works maintenance - - -
Police protection 142,525 158,477 15,952
Fire protection 254,085 297,203 43,118
Senior nutrition and transportation 331,087 251,735 (79,362)
Streets and sidewalks 3,237,896 3,297,928 {939,968)
Public transportation 62310 160,649 98,339
Total governmental activities 5,783,346 5,829,962 46,616

Business-type activities:
Sewer 1,423,858 1,409,734 (14,124)
Water 1,455,117 1,755,309 300,392
Sanitary Landfil] 72,782 - (72,782)
Total business-type activities 2,951,757 3,165,243 213,486
Total primary government 58,735,103 38,895,205 $260,102

Governmental activities program revenue increased 546,616 in 2008-09. The increase in
planning and development is due to grant funds received for econonic development
activities. The decrease in revenue for parks and recreation, $154,336, and streets and
sidewalks, $939,968 are due to the completion of projects funded with grant funds in the
2007-08.

Business activities program revenue increased $213,486 in 2008-09, primarily due to a
scheduled increase in the utility rates. The sewer fund §14,124 revenue decrease was due
to a $439,794 decrease in one-time grant revenue received for capital projects 2007-08,
that was offset by $425,670 of utility rate fee revenue increases.
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Comparison of Government Wide Program Expenses:
Year over Year

Program Expenses 2007-08 2008-09 Change

Governmental activities:
General government $908.457 81,125,207 $216,750
Planning and development 618,852 1,443,990 825,138
Parks and recreation 065,232 657,622 (337,610)
Public works administration 183,902 163,550 (18,352)
Public works maintenance 208,891 137,699 (71,192)
Police pratection 2,137,588 2,251,669 114,081
Fire protection 389,501 488,307 98,806
Senior nutrition and transportation 372,456 329,306 {43,150)
Streets and sidewalks 820,042 944,006 123,964
Public transportation 67,862 186,929 119,067
Total governmental activities 6,702,783 7,730,286 1,027,503

Business-type activities:
Sewer 1,332,463 1,413,747 81,284
Water 1,368,686 1,394,692 26,006
Sanitary Landfill 100,365 - (100,365)
Total business-type activities 2,801,514 2,808,439 6,925
Total primary government $9.504,297  %10,538,725 $1,034.,428

Functional expenses for governmental activities increased $1,027,503 in 2008-09 from
2007-08. Planning and development expenses increased $825,138 due to economic
development operating grants. General governmental activities increased $216,750,
primarily due to an increase of $125,396 in interest expense increase for landfill debt
service and a $59,954 in liability insurance premiums. The park and recreation decrease
was due to completion of one-time capital outlay grant projects in parks and recreation.

Functional expenses for business-type activities increased $6,925 in 2008-09 from 2007-
08. Ofthat increase, $107,290 represents operating cost increases in the water and sewer
funds offset by the $100,365 decrease due to closure of the landfill enterprise fund in
2007-08.
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds:

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental funds:

The focus of the City of Yreka’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term cash inflows, cash outflows, and available ending balances and reserves for
operations. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Yreka’s financing
requirements. In particular, unrestricted and undesignated fund balances may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net capital available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Yreka, and at the end of the
current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $7,038,053. Nearly 36% of this total amount or $2,521,115 is restricted. The
General Fund balance restricted for capital outlays of $1,958,525 represents funds in the
Crandell account. The Crandell account is an account where the City has expenditure
control, but is restricted to expend only for special capital outlays by a will. The
remaining $562,590 represents non-current loans receivable. These loans arise from
grant lending programs for economic development and housing rehabilitation.

Unreserved, but designated fund balances indicate that it is not available for spending.
This 1s because it has already been committed to 1} roads and streets 2) capital
improvements 3) grant projects 4) insurance reserves and other specified designations.
The City has $2,681,052 of unreserved but designated fund balances.

The City has $1,835,887 of unreserved and undesignated governmental fund balances.

As a measurement of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved
fund balance represents 45% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 71% of that same amount.

Governmental Funds revenue decreased by $417,045 in 2008-09 (810,489,248) from
2007-08 ($10,906,293) due to two major reasons. The first reason was a decrease in
property and sales tax revenue, and those trending decreases are expected to continue.
The second reason is due to a decrease in one time grant fund revenue from 2007-08, and
a one-time insurance premium dividend in 2007-08.

Expenses decreased $355,475 in 2008-09 from 2007-08; primarily due to infrastructure
and capital outlays pursuant to the grant projects for infrastructure projects on the City’s
streets and roads, storm drainage, and parks and greenways. The City also restructured
two general fund operating programs, that included the layoff of two managers for
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expenditure control, in anticipation of the declining tax revenue base.
Proprietary funds:

The City of Yreka’s proprietary funds, also referred to as business-type activities or
Enterprise Funds, provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail. Total net assets of the water, and wastewater
funds at the end of the year amounted to 314,547,313, and unrestricted net assets were
$4.091,401. In the statement on Cash Flows, page 9, the net increase (decrease) in cash
shows a decrease of $295,217. The wastewater enterprise fund had a $161,024 increase
in available cash due to utility rate increases. The water fund also had rate increase,
however offsetting that increase were planned capital outlay expenditures of $1,049,185,
which resulted in an overall cash decrease of $456,241. In October 2008, the City
implemented a five-year utility rate increase in an effort to bring revenues up to keeping
pace with the required cash outlay for both operations and required capital outlay and
financing. The City is on track with its revenue increases, operating costs controls, and
required capital outlay as identified from the rate analysis study.

Agency funds:

Agency funds consist of fiduciary funds that are used to account for assets held ina
trustee or agent capacity for others. The City has no agency funds.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

Below is a table comparing the differences between the original budget and the final
amended budget for revenue and expenses in the General Fund, Special Grant Fund,
Special Revenue and Streets and Roads Fund. More line item detail is available on pages

28 through 31 of this report.

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget to Actual 2008-2009

General Fund

Original Final Actual

Revenue 55,348,200 $5,476,936 $5,466,436
Expense 5,003,304 5,075,608 5,102,003
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) expenses 344,896 401,328 364,453
Other Financing Sources and (Uses) {150,154} {175,726)  (149,339)
Net Change in Fund Balance $194,742 $223,602 $215,114
Special Grants Original Final Actual
Revenue £8,221,088 $3,936,890 $3,937,791
Expense - 8206,695  3,895391 3,866,048
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) expenses 14,393 41,499 71,743
Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 150,154 182,031 157,188
Net Change in Fund Balance 5164,547 $223,350 $328,93]
Special Revenue Original Finai Actual
Revenue $438,000 $580,860 $574,357
Expense 319,763 396,863 396,232
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) expenses 118,237 183,997 178,325
Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 0 0 0
Net Change in Fund Balance $118,237 $183,997  $178,325
Streets and Roads Original Final Actual
Revenue $346,602 $516,801 $510,444
Expense 754,272 582,654 548,129
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under) expenses (407,670} {65,833) {37,685)
Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 0 78,476 76,951
Net Change in Fund Balance {8407,670) $12,623 . $39,266

General Operating Fund:

* Total revenues were $5,348,200 in the original budget, §5,476,936 in the final budget
and $5,466,456 for actuals. Revenue was increased by $128,736 in the final budget
to reflect increases in planning deposits and mutual aid fire response reimbursements.

* Total expenses were $5,003,304 in the original budget, §5,075,608 in the final budget
and $5,102,003 for actuals. The final budget expenses were increased by $72,304
from the original budget due to relatively small widespread departmental adjustments.

* The change in the general fund balance was $194,742 in the original budget,
$225,602 in the final budget and $215,114 for actuals. Actual results were on target

with performance expectations.
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Special Grant Fund:

Grant revenue was $8,221,088 in the original budget, $3,936,890 in the final
budget and actual revenue was $3,937,791. The original budget showed funding
for all grants projects that could have happened in the fiscal year 2008-09. The
final budget decreased by $4,284,198, recognizing the actual project funding and
implementation.

Capital expenditures for street rehabilitation and storm drain projects and safe
schools routes were $5,082,000 in the original budget, $1,889,829 in the final
budget and $1,887,597 for actuals. Work on many of these state funded grant
projects were suspended, as the state was unable to reimburse the grantee for
work completed until the state could complete open market bond sales.

Capital expenditures for parks and recreation and community development
projects were $2,033,474 in the original budget, $708,277 in the final budget and
$692,296 for actuals. The primary decrease was again due to temporary
suspension of state grant programs.

Expenditure for community development housing and business loans was
$729,702 in the original budget, $941,716 in the final budget, and $934,209 for
actuals. The increase was due to state approval of a modified cost allocation plan
for the community kitchen grant. This grant was on hold until a new cost
allocation plan could be approved by the state HCD office.

Other financing sources and (uses) were $150,154 in the original budget,
$182,051 in the final budget and $157,188 for actuals. Meal and transportation
donations received from participants in the senior program, were below original
expected revenues and in anticipation, the City increased its general fund
contribution in the final budget to balance the program. At yearend, actual
general fund transfers were only $157,188, due to mid-year expenditure controls
for that program.

Special Revenue Fund:

Revenues were $438,000 in the original budget, $580,860 in the final budget and
$574,557 for actuals. The primary variance between the original budget and the
final budget is due to $92,960 increase in the collection of development impact
fees, and $30,900 increase in collection of landfill access fees due to a higher than
projected increase to Engineering News Record cost of construction index applied
to the landfill access charge for debt servicing.

Expenses were $319,763 in the original budget, $396,863 in the final budget and
$396,232 for actuals.

Expenditures for fire protection equipment were higher than the original budget
by $77.,000 for purchase of equipment to outfit the City’s recently financed
purchase of two fire engines.
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Streets and Roads Fund:

* Revenues were $346,602 in the original budget, $516,801 in the final budget and
$510,444 for actuals. The final budget increase reflects $160,649 for the County
of Siskiyou’s allocation of the local transportation funds for the City’s
contribution to the STAGE bus transportation program.

* Expenditures primarily for capital projects in the Gas Tax Fund were $754,272 in
the original budget, $582,654 in the final budget and $548,129 for actuals.
Capital projects in the original budget that were not completed totaled $214,600
for road paving and storm drain projects, which was in part offset by an
expenditure appropriation of $160,649 for the City’s contribution to the STAGE
bus transportation program.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Changes in Capital Assets
Balance Balance

June 30, 2008 Additions  Retirements June 30, 2009

Governmenial Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated;

Land $1,702,514 51,702,314

Construction in Progress 2,495,897 2,705,938 526,285 4,675,550
Capital assets being depreciated:

Building and Structures 3,963,149 444 723 4,407,872

Machinery and Equipment 3,758,827 374,095 3,384,732

Infrastructure 21,553,403 81,562 21,634 965
Governmental Activities Capital Assets 33,473,590 3,232,223 500,380 35,805,433
Less Accumulated Depreciation (19,592,440) (683,262) (158,400) (20,11 7,302)

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net  $13,881,150 $2.548.961 3741980 $15,688,131
Business-type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land §253,172 $253,172

Construction in Progress 826,171 994,487 - 1,820,658
Capital assets being depreciated:

Utility Plant 14,567,083 14,567,083

Building and Structures 6,994,027 6,994,027

Machinery and Equipment 3,775,000 83,396 3,858,396
Total Business Activities Capital Assets 16,415,453 1,077,883 - 27,493,336

Less Accumulated Depreciation {14,600,025) (536,60%5) - {15,136,630)

Business-type Capital Assets, net 11,815,428 541,278 - 12,356,706
Total Capital Assets, net $23,696,578 $3,090,239  $741980 $28,044,837

The City of Yreka’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of June 30, 2009 amounts to $28,044,837 (net of accumulated depreciation).
Non-depreciable capital assets are land, land right of ways, used primarily for streets and
construction that is in progress. Depreciable assets include buildings and structures,
equipment and vehicles. Public domain capital assets for infrastructure that include
streets and sidewalks, curbs and gutters, drainage systems, bridges, and lighting systems.

Over the past 10 years, the City has completed numerous master plan studies and taken
inventory of its assets, with the Jast study completed December 2007. In these studies,
~engineers have identified over $29 million of capital improvements needed within the
next five to ten years for the City’s infrastructire assets of streets, water and sewer
utilities. That roughly translates to about $7,800 per household. To that end, the City
remained focused its efforts, in 2008-09, to deal with ways to fund infrastructure
improvements. Capital grants remain the primary source of funding for capital outlay to
the City’s aging infrastructure. Although the water, wasterwater systems are safe and
reliable, these infrastructure assets are aging and in need of replacement pipes, booster
pumps, tank cleaning and resurfacing, filters, and other identified system upgrades.
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Street and roads, in are serious need of rehabilitation but at present there is not an
adequate revenue stream for repairs, other than competitive granis.

Major capital asset events during the year are listed as follows.

Governmental Activities

* In2008-09 construction in progress increased $2,179,653 million for major street
repair and rehabilitation projects $1,013,141, development of storm drain basins,
floodplains and culverts $834,140, several park and greenway restroom and trail
developments projects $247,572 and information technology conversion project
for the City $84,800. Cumulative construction in progress totals $4,675,550.

¢ Utilizing both workforce housing and Prop. 40 state grant awards, the City
completed new park restroom facility $204,973 in Miner Street park and the
downtown restroom facility $239,750. The downtown restrooms are a
cooperative community and grants project that provided for the rehabilitation of
108 West Miner Street into an art gallery and public restroom facilities, with the
non-profit art organization, known as Liberty Arts.

* A USDA Collaborative Forest Restoration grant provided funds to prepare a
comprehensive storm drain ecological mitigation plans for drainage along Yreka
Creek for $81,562. '

* The City transferred its bus fleet, $374,095, for senior transportation services to a
non-profit organization, Madrone Hospice, as a part of an agreement to continue
operation the senior programs in the community.

Business Type Activities

» Projects under construction increased $994,487 in 2008-09, totaling $1,820,658
cumulatively. Those projects include major improvements to the City’s water
pumping, treatment and storage facilities.

e Field service equipment (backhoe) was acquired for $83,396.
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Changes in Long Term Debt:

Changes in Long Term Debt

Balance Principal Balance
June 30, 2008 New Issues Payments June 30, 2009

Governmental Activities:

Loans Payable - Banks and Qthers $993,940 584,800 §109,847 $970,893
Loans Payable - Governmental Agencies 2,325,000 498,604 2275396
Total Governmental Activities 3,320,940 84,800 159,451 3,246,289
Business-type Activities:

Loans Payable - Banks and Others 0 0 0 0
Loans Payable - Governmental Agencies 1,344,186 0 250,096 1,094,090

Certificates of participation - USDA Rural
Development 868,000 0 11,000 857,000
Total Business Activities 2,212,185 0 261,096 1,951,090
Total Outstanding Long Term Debt  $5,533,126 384,800  $420,547  $5,197,379

L.ess Portion Classified as Current Debt (433,949)

54,763,430

At the end of the current fiscal year,
the City of Yreka had total debt
outstanding of $5,197,379 and long
term outstanding debt of
$4,763,430. Detailed information
on lenders, rates and maturities for
long-term debt can be found on
pages 22 through 24 of this report.

The City of Yreka’s total debt
decreased by $420,547 during the
current fiscal year 2008-09 due to
scheduled principal repayment on
borrowings. The $84,800 increase
represents a loan agreement with
Springbrook software to purchase
an enterprise resource planning
(ERP/financial) system.
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Next Year’s Budgets and Rates:

Budget Highlights for 09-10

Below are highlights from the City’s 2009-10 original budget. The original budget was
approved by the City Council on September 17, 2009. The original budget includes
settlement and acceptance of bargaining unit contracts for 2009-10, from all of the City’s
bargaining units.

City of Yreka
2009-10 Original Budget

Budgeted Budgeted

Revenue Expense
Total General Fund $4,920,218 $5,042,765
Total Special Rev. Fund 492 550 319,527
Total Streets and Roads 1,217,195 1,516,091
Special Grant Fund 3,642,392 3,617,170
Total Governmental Activity Fund 10Lb,272,355 10,495,553
Sewer Fund 1,550,400 2,163,516
Water Fund 1,789,800 2,119.938
[Tofal Business Type Funds 3340200 4,283454
AlFunds Combined .~ S13612555  §14779,007

The City projects a $1.2 million decrease in working capital during fiscal year 2009-10,
primarily in the enterprise funds $943,254 and road and streets funds $223,198. This is
due to needed improvements to City’s infrastructure system. Capital reserves wiil be
used to offset the excess costs for these construction projects.

Grant Awards;

Highlights of the budget include the continued diligence of the City to leverage public
dollars with grants awards. The level of capital improvements and community operating
grants would not be included in this budget if it were not for the successful and continued
efforts of City staff to obtain and administer these grants.
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General Fund Revenue Projections:

Revenue projections for 2009-10, reflects the continued decline in the cities property,

sales and transient lodging taxes

General Fund - Fiscal Year Main Stream Revenue Comparison

Original
Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget
05-06 06-07 07-08 08-09 09-10
Property Tax (secured & unsec. roll) $766,460 5887,856 $915,035 5941,360 $851,000
Transient Lodging 593,285 608,826 592,729 626,360 375,000
Sales Tax 1,599,734 1,607,462 1,709,256 1,462,862 1,400,000
Franchises 206,474 220,470 234,541 234,541 230,000
Business Licenses 75,191 77,491 80,060 79,378 80,000
Animal Licenses 9,223 10,431 10,842 21,488 235,000
Building Permits 175,363 94,546 77,343 51,279 35,000
Motor Vehicle License Fees (1) 512,914 524,463 542 789 570,778 494,800
Triple Flip In Lieu Sales Tax (2) 541,007 509,797 397,296 501,647 460,000
Subtotal General Fund Mainstream
Revenue $4,479,651  $4,541,342  $4,759,891 $4,489,693 54,152,800

(1) Includes in licu prop tax for MVLF shift,

(2} Includes the 1x shift impact af the Triple Flip in Lico Szles Fax, whereas the State is withholding of 0.25% Sales Tax, that is offset by 1he Property Tmees

ERAF shift 1o in-lieu Sales Tax that is paynble to the City ns in-licu Sales Tx.

Enterprise Fund Revenue:

The City adopted in June 2008, a phased in five-year water and wastewater rate increase.
A targeted educational campaign and community outreach programs helped to ensure, the
successful implementation of the fees under the Proposition 218 rules. Public outreach
explaining the new rate structure continues, as the City annually explaining the proposed
projects supported by the rate increase in the Yreka City newsletter and information is
available on the City’s website. The first utility rates increase under this program went
into effect October 1, 2008.

With City Council approval, Public Works submitted in the fall of 2008, loan and grant
applications to the State Revolving Loan Fund and USDA Rural Development program
seeking over $10 million of water treatment infrastructure improvements. The City has
received preliminary approval for its loan and grant funding request, with approximately
30% grant funded and 70% financed. The rate increases will pay for the financing costs
relating to the construction of these facilities.

Expenditure Control:

The City is diligently working to keep expenditures under control while continuing to
maintain the historic levels of service that the citizens of Yreka have come to expect and
rely upon. The balancing of services with resources continues to challenge most notably
the Public Safety and Public Works departments, In 2009-10, the City implemented a
one-day a month furlough schedule (or its equivalent for some departments) for City
employees.
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Horizon Issues for 2009-10:
Not reflected in the budget, but of concern, to the City are the following three issues:

[1] An expected decline in core general fund revenue of sales, property and transient
occupancy taxes, that mirrors the overall economic downturn for the state.

[2] The Council continues to seek funding sources for instrastructure, particularly roads,
drainage, and maintenance of improved and expanded parks and greenways.

[3] The State of California’s budget crisis remains as the State has not found any long
term solutions to its fiscal problems. The impact to cities continues to be deferrals and
shifts of revenue streams, along with proposed revenue cuts.

Requests for Information:

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Yreka’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the City’s Finance Director, 701 Fourth
Street, Yreka, CA 96097, or contact us at www.cl.vreka.ca.us.
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Certified Public Accountanls Aiell(}, Goodrich @Teuscllel‘ Management Consulianis

An Accountancy Corporaiion

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the City Council
City of Yreka, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each
major fund of the Cily of Yreka, California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which callectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of City of Yreka,
California management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes eéxamining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclesures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

tn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activitles, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Yreka, California, as of
June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Gavemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 28, 2010 on our
consideration of City of Yreka, California's Internal control over financlal reparting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of intemal contrels over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis, and budgetary comparison information on pages |l through XXl and 28
through 31, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was canducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 32, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Govemnments, and Non-Profif Organizations, and is also net a required part of the basic financial statements of City of Yreka,
California. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards have heen subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are faidy stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

., b -—
Reollo, Compria e & @t hen
Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher
An Accountancy Corporation
Mt. Shasta, California
February 28, 2010

1
P.O. Box 158 » 205 N, Mt. Shasta Blvd., Suite 300 « Mt. Shasta, California 96067 = (530) 926-3881 » Fax (530) 926-6296 » E-mail kathy@agtcpa.com




BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investmenis
Receivables (net of allowances for bad
debts, where applicable);
Trade accounts
Loans
Intergovernmental
Accounis
Taxes
Interest
Total current assels

Resiricted assels:
Cash and investiments
Receivables, interest
Total restricted assels

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net

Total capital assets

Total assets-

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll payable
Accrued vacation
DCeferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Totat current liabilities

Long-term liahilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion

Tolal liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricled for capital projecis (expendahle}
Unrestricted

Total net assets

The aceompanying notes are an integral
parl of these financial stalemants.

City of Yreka

June 30, 2009

Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Business-type

Aclivities Activities Total
% 3,453,637 $ 3,669,451 $ 7,125,088
- 343,877 343,877
562,590 - 562,550
2,356,118 350,000 2,706,118
92,403 - 92,403
418,719 - 418,719
11,907 - 11,8907
6,901,374 4,363,328 11,264,702
1,946,940 50,295 1,997,235
11,585 - 11,585
1,958,525 50,284 2,008,820
6,377,863 2,073,830 8,451,693
9,310,267 10,282,877 19,583,144
15,688,131 12,356,707 28,044,838
24,548,030 16,770,330 41,318,360
220,947 238,144 459 091
214,329 33,783 248,112
273,980 - 273,980
1,112,590 - 1,112,580
166,384 267,555 433,948
1,988,240 539,482 2,527,722
3,079,835 1,683,535 4,763,430
5,068,135 2,223,017 7,291,152
12,441,842 10,405,617 22,847 459
1,858,525 50,295 2,008,820
5,079,528 4,081 401 8,170,929
$19,479,895 $14,547,313 $34,027,208
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City of Yreka
Balance Sheet
and
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to the Statement of Net Assets - Governmental Activities
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2008

Special Streets Total
General Special Grant Revenua and Roads Govemmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and invesiments 53,614,162 S - $ 337,621 51,454,794 1 5,406,577
Receivables {net of allowance for doubtiul accounis, where applicable):
|.oans - 562,590 - - 562,580
Intergovernmenial 62,616 2,239,444 - 34,057 2,356,118
Accounis 25,201 - 52,970 14,232 52,403
Taxes 418,718 - - - 418,718
Interest 16,255 248 1,857 5,092 23,492
Due from other funds 1827457 - - - 1.927.457
Tatal assels $ 5,064,410 1 2,803,382 § 392,488 5 1,538,176 § 10,787,356
LIABILITIES AND FUND SALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 67610 $ 103,136 B 11,347 5 45,886 5 220,947
Payrol payable 214,325 - - - 214,329
Accrued vacalion 273,580 - - . 273,980
Defemed revenue - 571,580 - &41,000 1,112,590
{lue {a ather funds - 1,827,457 - - 1,927,457
Total liabllities 545,918 2,602,182 11,317 568,886 3,749 303
Fund balances;
Reserved fon
Noncurrent lpans receivables - 562,580 - - £62,580
Capital outlays 1,958,525 - - - 1,858,525
Talal 1,956,525 562,590 . - 2,521,145
Unreserved;
Designalad far:
Streets and sidewalks - - - 538,280 036,250
Capital improvement 167,021 - 305,000 - 472,021
Fire protection - - 248,830 “ 246,830
Grant projects 81,199 - - - 61,198
Other 942,712 - - - 942,712
Tolal 1,180,932 - 551,830 938,280 2 681,052
Undesignaled 2,368,036 {362,490) {170,859) - 1,635,887
Telal fund balance 5,518,492 200,100 381,171 938,290 7,038,054
Total llabllities and fund talance S 6,064,410 5 2,802,282 $ 392,488 £ 1,528,176 $ 10,787,356
Tolal povernmental fund balance, ss above S 7,038,054
Amounts reporied for governmental activities In the stalemen! of net assels are difieren! because;
Capilal assels vsed in governmenial activilies are not financial resources and therelore not reparted in the funds 15,688,131
Long-lerm liabilities, including bonds payable, are nol due and payable in the
curren! period and therefore are not reporled In the funds (3.246.289)
Mel assels of govemmental activities $ 19,479,855

The accompanying notes are an inlegral
pari of these financial statements,



City of Yreka
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Special Streels Total
General Special Grant Revenue and Roads Governmenial
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Property jaxes $ 868,350 3 - B - 5 - $ 963,350
Sales and wse taxes 1,964,509 - - - 1,964,509
Transient occupancy taxes 626,360 - - - 626,360
Assessment - 213,564 - 213,564
Franchise and fees 242,229 - - - 242,229
l.icenses and penmits 185,618 - 138,037 - 323,653
Intergavemmeanial revenues 701,104 3,700,533 - 414,291 4,815,934
Chargss for services 258,135 - 213,396 - 471,533
Indirect cast allocation 312,530 - - - 312,530
Fines, forfeltures and penalies 8,622 - - 66,317 74,939
se of money snd properly 127,970 99,286 9,558 27,727 264,542
Grants and donations 39,163 35,881 - - 75,044
In-kind 8,16 102,106 - - 110,121
Other 23,590 - - 2,308 25,688
Total revenues 5,466,456 3,937,791 574,557 510,444 10,485,248
EXPENDITURES
Cureni:
Cily eauncll, administraler, and clerk 346,848 - - - 346,848
General govemment 623,639 - 5,601 - 628,239
Pfanning and developmeni 492 180 934,209 - - 1,426,368
Parks and recreation 551,568 12,121 - - 563,689
Pubfic warks administration 156,878 B,672 - - 165,550
Public warks maintenance 137,699 - 137,693
Pelice protection 2,228,638 - - - 2,228,638
Fire protection 2BB,480 - 79,827 - 368,308
Senior nutrition and lransperiation - 329,305 - - 329,305
Streets and sidewalks 174,313 - - 344,198 518,511
Putlic iransportation - 1,849 - 160,649 162,494
Capilal outtay 84,800 2,579,893 - 43,282 2,707,975
Debi service;
Principal 16,860 - 142 491 . 159,451
Inlerest - - 168,313 - 168,313
Total expenditures 5,102,003 3,666,048 395,232 548,129 9,912,412
Excess of revenues over {under) expendilures 364,453 71,743 178,324 (37,685) 576,836
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Preceeds from long-term debt B4,BOD - - - 84,800
Operating transfers in - 157,188 - 76,8531 234,139
Operating transfers out (234,138) - - - (234,139)
Tolat other financing sources {uses) (149,339) 157,188 - 75,851 84,800
Excess of revenues and other sources over {under)
expenditures and other uses 215,114 228,931 178,324 38,266 661,636
EUND BALANCE
Beginning of year, as previcusly reporied 5,303,378 {28,831) 202,847 899,024 6,376,418
End of the year $ 5,518,492 & 200,100 3 381,171 £ 938,280 g 7,038,054

The accompanying noles are an integral 5
part of these financial statements.



City of Yreka
Reconciliation of the Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance 1o the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Change in fund belance, governmental funds 7 661,636

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
is different because:

Governmental funds repori capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Siatement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reporied as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlay {$2,705,938), exceeds the
depreciation expense ($683,262} in the current period. 2,022 676

Loss on disposal of capital assets in the Statement of Activities: (215,695)
Government funds report the proceeds of long-term debt as an other financing
source on the Siaiement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances, but is an increase in long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assels: 159,450

Governmental {unds report the proceeds of long-lerm debt as an other financing
source on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance,

but is an increase in long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. (84,800)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $2,543,267

The accompanying noles are an integral
part of these financial statements, 6



ASSETS
Cumrent assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowances for bad
debts, where applicable):
Trade accounts
Intergovernmental
Total current assets

Restricted assets:
Cash and investments

Capital assels:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Tolal capital assets, nel

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounis payable
Payrall payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

L.ong-term liabilities:
l.ong-term debt, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted, for debt service, expendable
Unrestricted

Total net assels

The accemnpanying noles are an integral
parl of these financial statements.

City of Yreka
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2009

Enterprise
Sewer Water

Fund Fund Total
$ 162,622 $3,506,829 $ 3,669,451
144 502 199,375 343,877
350,000 - 350,000
657,124 3,706,204 4,363,328
53,285 - 50,295
937,014 1,136,816 2,073,830
7,900,766 2,382,111 10,282,877
8,837,780 3,518,827 12,356,707
9,545,189 7,225,131 16,770,330
77,790 160,354 238,144
12,877 20,906 33,783
65,647 201,908 267,555
156,314 383,168 538,482
1,683,535 - 1,683,535
1,838,849 383,168 2,223,117
7,088,598 3,317,019 10,405,617
50,295 - 50,295
566,457 3,524,943 4,091,401
§7,705,350 36,841,963 514,547,313




City of Yreka
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings
Proprietary Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Enterprise
Sewer Water
Fund Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES :
User fees and charges 51,409,734 $1,754,885 $ 3,164,619
Other - 524 6524
Total operating revenues 1,409,734 1,755,509 3,165,243
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of power and water : 115,185 212,692 327.877
Maintenance, operations and administration 934,644 939,853 1,874,458
Depreciation and amortization 300,714 235,891 536,605
Total operating expenses 1,350,543 1,388,436 2,738,979
Operating income 58,191 367,073 426,264
OTHER REVENUES (EXPENSES}
Interest earned 3,141 90,705 93,846
Interest expense (63,204) (6,256) (69,460)
Other (expenses) (63,235) - {63,235)
Total other revenues (expenses) {123,297} 84,449 {38,84%)
Change in net assets (64,107) 451,522 387,415
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 7,769,457 6,390,441 14,159 898
End of the year $7,705,350 $6,841,963 314,547,313

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial stalements,



City of Yreka
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Enterprise
Sewer Water
Fund Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 51,356,717 $1732,413 5 3,085,130
Payments to suppliers (666,352) {485,141) (1,151,483)
Payments to employees (374,386} {539,283) {913,669)
Net cash provided {used) by operating
activities 315,879 707,989 1,023,968
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental revenues 64,704 2,690 67,354
Interfund transfers and payments (4,375) (4,375} (8,750)
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital
financing activities 60,329 {1,685} 58,644
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assels (28,698) {1.049,185) (1,077.,883)
Principal payments on debt (63,288) {197,809) {261,097)
Interest payments on debt {63,204) {6,256) (65,460)
Other {63,235) - (63.235)
Net cash provided (used) by investing aclivilies (218,425) {1,253,250) (1,471,675)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income received 3,141 90,705 93,846
Net increase {decrease)
in cash 161,024 (456,241} (295,217}
CASH
Beginning of the year 51,893 3,963,070 4,014,963
End of the year § 212,917 $3,506,829 $ 3,719,746
Reconciliation of operating inceme (loss) to cash
provided {used) by cperating activities:
Operating income (loss) % 59,19 $ 367,073 5 426,264
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
cash provided {used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 300,714 235,891 536,605
{Increase) decrease in trade accounts
recejvable _ (53,017) (23,096) (76,113)
Decrease in prepaid expenses - 75 - 75
Increase in accounts payable 24,459 147,779 172,238
Decrease in payroll payable (15,368) {19,733) (35,101)
Net cash pravided (used} by
opeiating activities 5 315879 $ 707,989 § 1,023,968

The accompanying noles are an integral
part of these financial statements,



City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Yreka, California (hereafter "the City") operates under a City Manager — City Council form of government
and provides the following services: puhblic safety, streets and roads, water and sewer, culture and recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services,

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as applicable to governmental entities. The follewing is a summary of the more significant polices.

The City applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) pronouncements. The
enterprise/proprietary fund types apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASE) pronouncements and
Accourting Principles Board {APB) Opinions issued on or hefore November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
contflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

The financial statements of the City include all of the financial activities of the City. In evaluating how to define the
City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units. The decision to
include a potential compenent unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. The
basic - but not the only - criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing
body's ability lo exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability {0 exercise oversight responsibility inciude, but are not limited to,
the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significanily influence operations
and accountability for fiscal matters. The other criterion used to evaluate potentizl component units for inclusion or
exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is
able to exercise oversight respaonsibilities. Based upen the application of these criteria, the City does not have any
companent units,

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements;

The statement of net assets and statement of activities include the financial activities of the overall government,
except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.
These slatements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental
activities are reported separately from business-type activities (such as water, sewer and sanitary landfill fund).

The slatement of activities presents a comparisoen between direct expenses and program revenues for each different
identifiable activity of the City's business-type activities and for each function of the City's governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and therefore are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by recipients of goods and services
offered by the program, and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as pragram revenues are presented instead as
general revenues,

When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, restricted resources are depleted first before the
unrestricted resources are used.

Fund Financial Statements:
Fund financial statements of the City are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a separate

accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its
assets, Jiabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major
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City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 1_SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental
and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the
following criteria:

Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditure/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at
least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category type; and

Totat assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses for the individual governmental or enterprise fund are
at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the City are described below:
Major Governmental Funds:

General Fund — The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenues Fund - This fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures of the fire assessments, landfill
assessments and development fees.

Special Grants Fund — This fund is used {o account for various federal and state grants which must be spent for
infrastructure capital outlays, such as streets and parks, and economic and community development.

Streets and Roads Fund — This fund is used to account for revenues received from the State of California which must
be spent for street maintenance or repairs.

Major Proprietary Funds:

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in & manner simitar to a
private business enterprise where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a cantinuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management controf, accountability, or other purposes.

The Water Fund — This fund is used to account for the treatment and distribution of water within the City of Yreka.
User charges to customers based upon water consumption account for substantially all of the operating revenue
in this fund.

The Sewer Fund — This fund is used to account for the transportation and treatment of waste water within the City
of Yreka., User charges lo customers accounts for substantially all of the operating revenue of this fund.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which” transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to *when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

11



City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Measurement Focus:

In the government-wide statements, both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic
resources measurement facus as defined below.

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus or the economic resources
measurement focus is used as appropriate.

All governmental funds utilize a current financial resources measurement focus. Only current financial assets and
lizbilities are generally included an their balance sheets. Their operating statements present resources and uses of
available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of
available spendable financial resources at the end of the year.

All proprietary (enterprise} funds utilize an economic resources measuremenlt focus. The accounting objectlives of this
measurement focus are the determination of cperating income, changes in nel assets {or cost recovery), financial
position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are
reported. Proprietary fund equity is classifled as a net asset.

Fiduciary (agency} funds are notinvolved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore, measurement focus
in not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting:

In the government-wide statements, both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual
hasis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are
recorded when the liability Is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
lizbilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financiat statements, governmental and agency funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available, Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible
within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures {including capital outlays) are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred.

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting, as described above.

D. Assets Liabilities, Net Assels or Fund Eauity

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For purposes of the statement of cash fiows, the City considers as cash equivalents all highly liquid investments with a
maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less.

Investments:
The City participates in the California Local Agency Investment Fund {"LAIF™). LAIF is an external investment pool
through which local governments may pool investments. Investments in LAIF are highly liguid, as deposits can be

converted to cash within 24 hours without the loss of interest. The fair value of the City's portion of LAIF is the same
as ils value of the pool shares. The regulatory oversight of LAIF rests with the Local Agency investment Board.

12



City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Receivables;

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds are the same as those in the government-
wide statements, since they are both measurable and available. Interest earnings are recorded when earned only if
paid within 60 days since they would be considered both measurable and available. Proprietary fund malerial
receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end bul not yet received. Allowances for uncollectibie accounts
receivable are based on historical trends, periodic aging of accounts receivable, and management’s detailed analysis
of the composition of accounts receivable.

Property Taxes:

The County of Siskiyou assesses, bills, and collects property taxes for the City. Assessed values are determined
annually by the Siskiyou County Assessor as of January 1, and become a lien on such property January 1. Taxes are
due November 1 and February 1 (secured), and July 1 (unsecured) and are delinguent if not paid by December 10
and April 10 (secured), and August 31 (unsecured). The County is permitted by the State Constitution {Article X111 A)
to levy taxes at 1% of the full market value of the property (at the time of purchase) and can increase a property's
assessed valuation by reappraisal due to new construction, change in ownership, or by increase in fair market value
not to exceed a 2% each year. Properly taxes collected by the County on behalf af the City but not rernitted to the City
by June 30 are accrued in revenue and included in other accounts receivable.

Interfund Receivables and Payables;

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds. These may include amounts refating to goods and services type transactions, and interfund
loans.

Restricted Assets;

Certain resources received by a hequest are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their useis
limited by the trust document for capital outlays.

Capital Assets:

The accounting treatment for property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets {capital assets) depends on whether
the assets are used in governmental fund operalions or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in
the government-wide or fund financial statements.

In the government-wide financial statements, praperty, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets with a cost, as
defined below, of $50,000 or more are accounted for as capital assets. All capital assets are valued at histarical cost
or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available, except donated capital assets are recorded at their
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an
allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Stalement of Net
Assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation.
The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings and building improvements 50 years
Land improvemenis 20 {o 30 years
Equipment 3o 20 years
Infrastruclure 15 to 50 years
Water and sewer maing 50 years
Vehicles 5 tp 10 years
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City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 1 _SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In the fund financial stalements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital
outfay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are
accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.

Compensaled Absences:

Vacation pay and compensated time off is vested to the emplayees as it accrues and is payable upon separation of
service. Sick leave does not vest to the employees and is paid only when sick leave is taken. Therefore, only
vacation pay and compensated time off have been accrued in the accompanying financial statements.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents monies received that has not yet been expended by the City and is not earned (as
revenue) until it is properly expended.

Equity Classifications:

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net assets and displayed as follows:

Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt, which consist of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by any outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, noles, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricled net assets, which consists of net assets wilh constraints placed on the use either by external groups such
as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets, which consists of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of restricted or invested
in capital assets, net of related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further

classifted as reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designaled and undesignated.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide financial statements.

E. Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenues and expenses not related o capital and related
financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities.

Expenditures/Expenses:

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for bath governmental and business-
type activities.
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City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified by character (current, debt service or capital outlay} for
governmental funds, and by operating or nonoperating classifications for proprietary funds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary funds
report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

F. Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

G. Budgeis

The budget of the City is a detailed operating plan which identifies estimated costs and results in relation to
estimated revenues. The budget represents a process through which policy decisions are made, implemented
and controlled.

The budget is adopted by the City Counsel each year, The City Manager is authorized to make transfers of
excess appropriations within a depariment; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund
requires City Counsel action. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the depariment level.
Expending funds for which there is no legal appropriation is prohibited.

Budgetary data is presented in the required supplementary information section of the financial statements for the
general fund and special revenue funds.

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2009, cash and investments were reported in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Governmental activities $ 5,406,577
Business-type activities 3,719,746
Total cash and investments $ 9,126,323

In the governmental activities statement of net assets, $1,943,665 of cash Is reserved for capital outlays per the trust
document that governs the bequest of these funds to the City.

The City of Yreka maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use for all funds. Each fund type's
position in the pool is reported on the combined balance sheet as cash and investments. The City has adopted an
investment policy, which authorizes it to invest in various investments.

Deposits:

At June 30, 2008, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $571,508 and the bank balance was $683,802. The
difference represents outstanding checks. ‘
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City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS {continued}

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations 1o secure a City's
deposits by pledging government securities with a value of 110% of a City's deposits. California law also allows
financial institutions to secure a City's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of
a City's total deposits. The City Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement for deposits that are fully insured up
to $100,000 by the FDIC. The collateral for deposits in federal and state chartered banks is held in safekeeping by an
authorized Agent of Depository recognized by the State of California Department of Banking. The collateral for
deposils with savings and loan associations is generally held in safekeeping by the Federal Home Loan Bank in San
Francisco, California as an Agent of Depository. These securities are physically held in an undivided pool for all
California public agency depositors. Under Government Code Section 53655, the placement of securilies by a bank
or savings and loan association with an "Agent of Depuository” has the effect of perfecting the security interest in the
name of the |ocal governmental agency. Accordingly, all collateral held by California Agents of Depasitory are
considered to be held for, and in the name of, the local governmental agency.

investments;

Under provision of the City's investment policy, and in accordance with the California Government Code, the following
investments are authorized:

. U.8. Treasury Obligations {bills, notes, and bonds)

U.S. Government Agency Securities and Instrumentality’s of Government Sponsared
Corporations

Banker's Acceptances

Commercial paper

Repurchase Agreements

Time Deposits and Certificates of deposit

Negotiable Certificates of depasit

Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool}

Investments Autharized by Debt Agreements:

The above investments do not address investment of debt proceeds held by a bond trustee. Investments of debt
proceeds held by a bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general
provisions of the California Government Cade of the City's investmeant policy.

Investments in State investment Pool;

The City is a valuntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. LAIF is overseen by
the L.ocal Agency Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance with State statute. The
State Treasurer's Office audits the fund annually. The fair value of the position in the investment pool is the same as
the value of the pool shares.

GASB Statement No. 31:

The City adopted GASBE Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for certain investments and for
External fnvestment Pools, as of July 1, 1897. GASB Statement No. 31 establishes fair value standards for
investments in participating interest earning investment contracts, external investment pools, equity securities, eption
contracts, shock warrants and stock rights that have readily determinable fair values. Accordingly, the City reports its
investments at the fair value in the balance sheet. All investment income, including changes in the fair value of
investments, is recagnized as revenue in the operating statement.
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City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk:

The City's investment policy limits investments in medium term notes (MTN's) fo those rated “A” or higher by Standard
and Poor's (S&P) or by Moody's. As of June 30, 2009, the City had no medium term notes. At June 30, 20089, the
City's Federal Agency investments were rated AAA by S&P.

All securities were investment grade and were legal under State and City faw. Investments in U.S. government
securities are not considered to have credit risk and, therefore, their credit quality is not disclosed.

As of June 30, 2009, the City's investments in external investment pools, other than LAIF, were with Margan Stanley
Smith Barney.

Custodial Credit Risk:

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

As of June 30, 2009, none of the City's deposits or investments were exposed to custodial credit risk.
Concentration of Credit Risk:

The City's investment policy states the City operates its investment pool with many state and self-imposed constraints.
it does not buy stocks and it does not speculate. Assets shall be diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from
over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific class of securities.

The City will diversify its investments by security type, institutions and maturity/call dates. The City's investment policy
states that no more than 50% of the City's total investment portfolio shall be invested in a single security type or with a
single financial institution. The only exception to these maturity limits shall be the investment of U.S. Treasury
securities and authorized pools. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City shall not directly invest in securities
maturing more than five years from the date of purchase.

As of June 30, 2009, in accordance with GASB 40 requirements, the City is exposed o concentration of credit risk
whenever they have invested more than 5% of their total investments in any one issuer. As of June 30, 20089, the City
has notinvested more than 5% of its portfolio in any one issuer. Investments guaranteed by the U.S. government and
investments in mulual funds and external investment pools are excluded from this requirement.

Interest Rate Risk:
The City’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value

losses arising from increasing interest rates. The City has elected to use the segmented time distribution method of
disclosure for its interest rate risk.
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City Yreka, California

Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS {continued)

6 Months & Months to 1i03 More than & Fair
or Less 1 Year Years Years Total Value
Local Agency
Investment Fund § 7,817,540 3 - - $ 7,817,540 § 7.817,540
Bank Certificates of
Deposit 567,640 169,635 - 737,275 737,275
Total $ 8,385,180 5 169,635 - % B,554.815 $ 8,554,815
Bank demand deposils 571,508
Total cash and investments § 9,128,323

NOTE 3_ LOANS RECEIVABLE

The City had the following loans receivable as of June 30, 2008;

Econamic Devefopment Loan Pragram
Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program

Total

There are no allowances for uncollectible accounts.

18
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City Yreka, California
Notes To Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

NOTE 4 DUE TO ! DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS AND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN/OUT

The following is 2 summary of the interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2009:

Due to other funds
Special Grant
Due from other funds Fund Total

General Fund 5 1,927,457 3 1,927 457

¥ 1,927,457 $ 1,827 457

The above amounts are to cover negative cash balances in the respective funds' pooled cash accounts, and will be

repaid by transferring monies from other cash accounts or from future revenues,

The following is a summary of operating transfers infout:

Governmental Funds: Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fungd:
General Funds share of expenses incurred by Streets znd Roads 5 - b 234,138
Fund ($76,951) by the Special Grants Funds (%157,188)
Special Grants Fund:
For the General Fund's portion of expenses [$157,188). 157,188 -
Streats and Roads Fund:
For the General Fund's particn of expenses ($76,851). 76,951 -
3 234,138 § 234,139
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NOTES CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

June 30, Additiens and Retirements and June 30,
2008 Transfers Transfers 2009

Governmental aclivities:
Capital assels, not being depreciated:
l.and 3 1,702,314 ] - 3 - 3 1,702,314
Construction in progress 2,485 BS7 2,705,838 (526,285) 4,675,550
Total capite] assels, nol being depreciated: 4.188,291 2,705,938 (526,285) 6,377,864
Capital assels, being daprectated:
Buildings 3,963,149 444 723 - 4,407,872
Machinery and equipment 3,758,827 - {374,085) 3,384,732
Infrastruciure 21,553,403 B1,562 - 21,634,965
Tolal capital assets, being depreciated 29,275,378 526,285 {374,095) 28,427 569
Less accumulated depraciation for:
Buildings 2,467,936 85,768 - 2,563,734
Machinery and equipment 1,882,215 207,694 (158,400) 2,041,509
Infrastruciure 15,132,268 379,770 - 15,512,059
Total accumulaled depreciation 19,592,440 663,262 {158,400) 20,417,302
Tolal capital assels, being depreciated, net 9,682,939 (156,977) (215,6895) 9,310,267
Subtoial, governmental activities 13,881,150 2,548,961 {741,980) 15,688,131
Business-lype aclivilies:
Capital assels, not being depreciated;
Land 253,172 - - 253,172
Construction in progress ' 826,171 994 487 - 1,620,658
Total capita! assels, not being depreciated 1,079,343 994 487 - 2,073,830
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Utility plant 14,567,083 - - 14,567 063
Buildings 6,094,027 - - 5,994,027
Machinery and eguipment 3,775,000 83,386 - 3,858,396
Total capital sssels, being depreciated 25,336,110 63,396 - 25,418,505
Less accumulated depraciation for:
Utility plant 8,195,313 286,766 - 9,492,078
Buildings 2,490,708 175,822 - 2,666,530
Machinery and equipment 2,914,004 64,018 - 2,978,022
Total accumulated depreaciation 14,600,025 536,605 - 15,136,630
Total capital assels, being depreciated, net 10,736,085 (453,208} - 10,282,876
Sublotal, business-type activities 41,815,428 541,278 ' - 12,356,706
Total, government-wide 5 25,696,578 ] 3,080,234 3 (741,580} & 28,044,837
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NOTE S5 CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:

Genera! government . : § 23,724
Planning and development 17,602
Parks and recreation 93,833
Police protection 23,031
Fire protection 77,082
Senior nutrition and transparation 24,431
Streets and sidewalks 423,458

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $583,262

NOTE 6 LONG TERM DEBT

The fallowing is a summary of governmental activities long-term liabilities activity during the year ended June 30,
2008:

June 30, June 30, Current
2008 Additions Reductions 2009 Portion
Bonds and notes payable;
Financial Soiftware 3 - $ 84,800 % 16,960 $ 67,840 $ 16,960
Landfill Sale 2,325,000 - 49,604 2,275,396 52,280
Fire Equipment 995,540 - 92,887 903,053 97,154
Tolal governmental aclivities
long-term liabilities 53,320,940 5 84,800 % 159,451 $3,246,289 5166,394

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental activities bonds and notes payable for future
years is as follows:

Landfill Sale Fire Equipmant
Interest rate 5.39% 4.50%
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Year Ended June 30, ;

2010 52,280 122,720 97,154 3B,650
2011 55,099 718,901 101,617 34,187
2m2 56,071 116,928 106,266 29,518
2013 61,203 13,797 111,168 24,636
2014 64,504 110,496 116,275 18,529
2015-2019 378,611 406,389 370,552 25,543
2020-2024 492,334 362,666 - -
2025-2029 840,218 234,784 - -
2030-2034 473,077 51,923 - -
Total % 2,275,396 5 1,749,604 $ 903,053 3 172,061
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NOTE 6 LONG TERM DEBT {continued)

Year Ended June 30, ;

Interest rate

Total

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015-2019
2020-2024
2025-202%
2030-2039

Financial Software Tatal
0.00%

Principal Interest Principal Interest
16,860 - 166,394 161,370
16,860 - 173,677 154,087
16,960 - 181,317 146,447
16,960 - 189,331 138,433

- - 180,77% 130,025
- - 743,184 521,931
- " 492,334 362,666
- - 640,216 234,784
- - 473,077 51,923
5 67,840 3 - 5 3,248,289 5 1,921,666

The following is a summary of business-type aclivities long-term liabilities activity during the year ended June 30,

2009:

June 30, 2008 Additions Reductions

June 30, 2009

Current Partion

Bonds and notes payable:
Cenrlificates of Participation

State Water Resources

Total sewer fund

Depl of Water Resources
Dept of Waler Resources

Total water fund

Tolal business-lype aclivilies

long term liabillies

868,000 5 - b 11,000 L 857,000 L 12,000
944,470 - 52,288 892,182 53,647
1,812,470 - 63,288 1,749,182 65,647
332,019 - 163,860 168,059 168,059
67,697 - 33,848 33,848 33,849
399,716 - 197,809 201,907 201,908
2,212,186 g - $ 261,097 § 1,951,089 b 267,555

Payments an {he bonds and notes payable that pertain to the City's business-type activities are made by the Water

and Sewer Funds.
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NOTE 6 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for Business-type activities bonds and notes payable for future
years is as follows:

USBDA Cert of Part State Water Resources
4.50% 2.60%
Interest rale Principal Interest Principal Interest
Year Ended June 30, ;

2010 12,000 3B,295 53,647 23,187
2011 12,000 37,755 55,042 21,802
2012 13,000 37,183 56,473 20,371
2013 13,000 36,608 57,841 16,803
2014 14,000 36,000 58,448 17,3986
20%5-2019 81,000 169,673 321,242 62,976
2020-2024 100,000 148,400 283,389 18,9886
2025-2029 125,000 124,091 - -
2030-2034 156,000 82,700 - -
2035-2039 193,000 53,528 - -
2040-2044 138,000 9,485 - -
Total % 857,000 $ 784,736 $ 892,182 % 1B3,630

Dep! of Waler Resources Dept of Water Resources

2.50% 2,50%
Interest rate Principal Inlerest Principa) Interest
Year Ended June 30, ;

2040 5 160,059 3 2,118 5 33,840 ] -
2011 -
2012 - - - -
2013 - - - .
2014 - - - -
2015-2019 - - - -
2020-2024 - - - -
2025-2029 - - - -
2030-2034 - - - -
Total § 168,058 3 2,118 5 33,848 5 -
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NOTE& LONG TERM DEBT {continued)

Total
Principal Interest
Year Ended June 30, ;

200 % 207,555 3 63,610

2011 67,042 58 557

20312 68,473 57,563

2013 70,941 55,510

2014 73,448 53,396
2015-2018 402,242 232,649
2020-2024 388,368 168,386
2025-2029 125,000 124,081
2030-2034 156,000 92,700
2035-2039 193,000 53,528
2040.2044 138,000 9,485

Total 5 1,951,089 5 970,484

NOTE 7 PENSION PLAN

Plan Description — The City's defined benefit pension plan, City of Yreka Pension Plan (“the Plan") provides retirement
and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The
Plan is part of the Pubic Agency portion of the California Public Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan administered by CalPERS, which acts as a comman investment and administrative agent for
participating public employers within the State of California. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other
requirements are established by State Statutes within the Fublic Employees' Retirement Law, The City selects
optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through local
resolutions. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS annual
financiai report may be obtained from the CalPERS Fiscal Services Division, PO Box 942703, Sacramenta, CA 94229-
2703 (1.888.CALPERS).

Funding Policy - Active plan members of the Plan are required to contribute 9.00% (safety) or 7.00% (miscellaneous)
of their annual covered salary. The City has elected to pay the employees’ contributicn. The City is required ta
contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer
contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2009 was 12.767% (safety) and 8.034% {miscellaneous). The
contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution rate is
established and may be amended by CalPERS.

Annual Pension Cost — For the year ended June 30, 2008 the City's annual pension cost was $263,338, and the City
paid employee share was $ 213,454, for a combined City contributed amount of $476,792. The required contribution
forthe year ended June 30, 2009 was determined as part of the June 30, 2006 actuarial valuation using the entry age
normal actuarial cost method with the contributions determined as a percentage of pay. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return {net of administrative expenses); (b) projecied salary increases that vary
by duration of service ranging from 3.25% to 14.45%, and: {c) 3.25% cost-of-living adjustment. Both (a) and (b)
include an inflation component of 3.00%. The actuarial value of the Plan's assets was determined using a technique
that smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a fiReen year smaothed market
method. The Plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or excess assets) is being amorlized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2006 was 30 years.
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Three Year Trend Information;

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2008 2008 2007
Annual Pension Cost (APC) $ 475,792 $ 455,080 $ 421,580
Percentage APC contributed 100% 100% 100%
Net Pension Obligation § - $ - L3 -

During the year ended June 30, 2003, CalPERS grouped all small employers {(defined as those with less than 100
members in the Plan) into a risk poal. Therefore, information for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006
{the latest available) are for the pool as a whole. The following represents public safety employees:

June 30, 2008

June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006

Schedule of funding progress:

Actuarial value of assets

$§ 438,674,996 $ 403,484,775 3 460,948,462

Actuarial accrued liability {(AAL) —

entry age

Unfunded {overfunded) AAL (UAAL)

Funded ratio

Covered payraoll

UAAL as a percentage of covered

payroll

Schedule of funding progress:

Actuarial value of assets

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) —

entry age

Unfunded {overfunded) AAL (UAAL)

Funded ratio

Covered payroll

5 504,295,839

§ 65,620,843
87.0%
$ 77,903,428
84.2%

The following represents miscellaneous employees:

June 30, 2008

§ 462,354,459

$ 58,869,684
87.2%
$ 72,308,836
81.4%

June 30, 2007

$ 534,135,011

$ 73,186,549
86.3%
$ B4,179,637
86.9%

June 30, 2006

$ 2,547,323278

$ 2,780,280,768

$ - 232,957,490
91.6%

% 688,606,681

$ 2,391,434,447

$ 2,611,746,790

$ 220,312,343
91.6%

$ 665,522,859

$ 2,492,226,176

% 2,754,396,608

$ 262,170,432
90.5%

§ 699,897,835

UAAL as a percentage of covered
payrall 33.8% 33.1% 37.5%

NOTE 8 DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

At June 30, 2008 there were no deficit fund balances.
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NOTE 8 RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Restricled net assets are net assets whose use are subject ta constraints that are either; (1) externally imposed by
creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, or laws or regulations of governments, or (2) impased by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted net assets at June 30, 2009 for governmental activities
were restricted for capital outlays.

NOTE 10 RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

Fund balances, which are not available for appropriation or are not considered expendable available financial
resources are reserved. Unreserved fund balances that have been earmarked for specified purposes are considered
designated.

Reserved fund balances consist of amounts reserved for noncurrent loan receivables and capital outlays.
Unreserved, designated fund balances are designated for fund purpose.

NOTE 11 OVEREXPENDITURE OF BUDGET

The General Fund over expended its budget by $26,395.

NOTE 12 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year end, the City incurred costs on several grants that are funded by the State of California and the
United States Federal Government {(FEMA). As of February 15, 2010, the City had approximately $350,000 in
receivables that are awaiting payment by these intergovernmental agencies from year end.

NOTE 13 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The net Assets for Governmental Activities as of June 30, 2008, has been adjusted for the following:
- Understatement of capital assels $ 20,652
These adjustments had no effect on the Statement of Activities, for the year ended June 30, 2009,

NOTE 14 RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates in the following public entity risk pools:

The Smalf Cities Organized Risk Effort (S.C.0.R.E.) covers general liahility claims in an amount up to $500,000.
The City has a deductible or uninsured liability of up to $25,000 per claim. Once the City's deductible is met
S.C.0.R.E. becomes responsible for payment of all claims up to the limit.

The Small Cities Organized Risk Efforl covers workers’ compensation claims up to the statutory limit. The City
has no deductibte for these claims.

The California Joint Risk Management Autharity covers general liability claims that exceed S.C.0.R.E. coverage
up to a maximum of $5,000,000. The premium for this coverage is included with the annual payments made to
S.C.O.R.E.

Actual surpluses or losses are shared according to a formula developed from averall ioss costs and spread to
member entities on a percentage basfs after a retrospective rating.
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There have been no significant reductions of coverage or insurance settlements that exceed insurance coverage
for the past three years.

5.C.0.R.E. is governed by a board consisting of representatives from member municipalities. The board controls
the operations of the risk paol, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets,
independent of any influence by member municipalities beyond their representation on the Board.

NOTE 15 CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in several Federal and State assisted grant pragrams that are subject to audit by the Grantors.
Although the ultimate outcome of such audits cannot be delermined at this time, the City believes that such audits will
not have a material adverse effect on the City.

The City is involved in litigation arising fram the ordinary course of its operations. The Cily believes that its ultimate

liability, if any, in connection with these matters, will not have a material effect on the City's financial condition or
results of operations.
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City of Yreka
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Variance With
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 960,000 $ 973,360 $ 968,390 5 {4,870)
Sales and use taxes 2,175,000 1,864,500 1,964,509 9
Transient cccupancy taxes 607,000 635,000 626,360 (8,640}
Franchise and other licenses 225,000 248,000 242 229 (5,771}
Licenses and permits 214,500 184,800 185,616 816
Intergovernmental revenues 660,000 701,300 701,104 {(196)
Charges for services 96,750 254 500 258,135 3,635
Indirect cost allocation 235,000 307,000 312,530 5,530
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 12,000 10,000 8,822 (1.178)
Use of maney and properly 120,800 128,810 127,970 (840)
Grants and donations 25,650 38,650 39,183 533
In-kind - 8,016 8,018 )
Other 12,500 23,000 23,590 590
Total revenues 5,348,200 5,476,936 5,466,456 (10,480)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
City council, administrator, and clerk 360,736 356,786 346,848 9,938
General government 720,535 650,106 623,639 26,467
Planning and development 478,446 479 861 492 180 {12,319)
Parks and recreation 503,747 531,969 551,568 {19,599}
Public works administration 144 191 164,291 156,878 7,413
Publiic works maintenance 178,377 165,377 137,689 27,678
Police protection 2,174,151 2,178,301 2,228,638 (50,337)
Fire protection 293,327 282 477 288,480 (6,003)
Streets and sidewalks 149,824 181,640 174,313 7,327
Capital outlay - 84,800 84,800 -
Debt service:
Principal - - 16,960 (16,960)
Inferest - - - -
Total expenditures 5,003,304 5,075,608 5,102,003 {26,395)
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 344,896 401,328 364,453 {36,875)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds fram long-term debt - 84,800 84,800 -
Operating transfers in - - - -
Operating transfers out {150,154) (260,526) (234,139) 26,387
Total other financing sources (uses) (150,154) {175,726} (149,339) 26,387
Excess of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses $ 194,742 5 225602 5 215,114 ] {10,488}

The accompanying noles are an integral
part of these financial slatements. 28




City of Yreka
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Special Grant Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Favorable
{Unfavarable)
Criginal Final Aclual Variance With
Budget Budget Amounts Fina! Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues $ 8,091,346 $3,701,816 $ 3,700,539 £ {1.277)
Use of money and property 11,100 99,500 99,286 (214)
Grants and donations 38,827 34,150 35,861 1,711
In-kind 79,815 101,424 102,106 661
Total revenues 8,221,088 3,936,890 3,937,741 901
EXPENDITURES
Current: .
Planning and development 728,402 041,716 934,209 7.507
Farks and recreation 47 966 16,300 12,121 4179
Public administration - 8,600 B,672 {72}
Senior nutrition and transportation 313,853 330,669 329,305 1,364
Public transporiation - - 1,848 {1,849)
Capital outlay 7,115,474 2,558,106 2,679,893 18,213
Total expenditures 8,206,695 3,895,391 3,866,048 29,343
Excess of revenues over (under) expendiiures 14,393 41,489 71,743 30,244
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Operating transfers in 150,154 182,051 157,188 {24,863)
Qperating transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 150,154 182,051 157,188 (24,8863)
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other uses 5 164,547 § 223,550 § 228,831 $ 5,381

The accompanying noles are an integral
part of these financial slalements. 29




REVENUES
Assessment
Licenses and permits
Charges for service
Use of money and property
Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Fire protection
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING (USES)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

City of Yreka

Budgetary Comparizon Schedule

Special Revenue Fund

For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total other financing sources (uses) -

Excess of revenues over {(under)
expenditures and other uses

The accompanying notes are an inlegral
part of these financial statements.

Favorable

{Unfavorable)

Original Final Actual Variance With
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
$ 200,000 $ 220,000 $ 213,564 3 (6,4386)
45,500 138,460 138,037 (423)
182,500 213,400 213,398 (2)
10,000 9,000 9,558 558
438,000 580,860 574,557 (6,303)
5,812 5912 5,601 311

3,148 80,146 79,827 319
142,144 142,144 142,491 (347)
168,661 168,661 168,313 348
319,763 396,863 396,232 630
118,237 183,957 178,324 (5,673)

5 118,237 $ 183,957 $ 178,324 § (6,673)
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City of Yreka
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Streets and Roads Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Favorable
{Unfavorable)

Original Final Actual Varfance With
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues $ 256,602 % 419,751 5 414,299 5 {5,460)
Fines and foreitures 77,000 65,900 66,117 217
Use of money and property 13,000 28,750 27,727 {1,.023)
Cther revenue - 2,400 2,308 (92)
Total revenues 346,602 516,801 510,444 (6,357)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Sireets and sidewalks 498,272 380,605 344,198 36,407
Public transportation - 160,649 160,649 -
Capiial outlay 256,000 41,400 43,282 (1,882)
Total expenditures 754,272 582,654 548,129 34,525
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (407,670) {65,853) (37,685) 28,168
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Operating transfers in - 78,476 76,951 (1,525)
Operating transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - 78,476 76,951 (1,525)
Excess of reverues over (Under)
expenditures and other uses $ {407.870) § 12,623 $ 39,266 3 26,643

The accompanying nofes are an integral
part of these financial stalements. 31




SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS AND SCHEDULES




City of Yreka
Schedule of Expendilures of Federal Awards
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Loan
Fass Grant Disbursements
Federal Through Award Federal Intluded In
Program Title CFDA # Grantor # Amcunt Expenditures Expenditures

Department of Homeland Security
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 093-686944 H] 511,346 $ 14,417 5 -
U.5. Department of Housing and Urban Development, passed
through California Department of Hausing and Community
Development
Community Development Block Granl/State's Programs i4.228 05-3T78G-1422 1,500,000 277,008 202,810
Community Developmeni Black Granl/State’s Programs 14.228 5-ELBG-19568 300,000 23675 -
Community Developmant Block Grani/Stale's Programs 14.228 06-£D8G-2703 560,000 376,160 -
Community Development Block Grany/State's Programs 14.228 DB-5THG-4752 50a,000 - .
Community Developmen! Block Grant/State's Programs 14.228 08-EDEF-5874 300,000 . -
Cammunily Develapment Block Grant/Technical Assisiance Program 44,227 07-PTAE-3136 70,000 54,573 -
Community Developmert Block GrantTechnical Assistance Program 14,237 07-PTAA.3673 70,000 70,000 -
Community Development Block GranifTeghnical Assislance Program 14,227 08-PTAE-5415 70,000 - -
Tolal HUD Programs 3,370,000 800,507 202,810
U.5 Department of Interior
Pariners in Fish and Wildlife, Fish and Wildlife Services 15,631 - 166,000 51,675 -
L5 Department of Agricolture
Collaborative Faresl Restorzalion 10.67% 81,400 26,469 -
U.8, Departmenit of Health and Human Services
passed through Planning and Service Area 2, Area
Agency on Aging
Senior Mutrition 93,044 - 36,236 36,236 -
Senior Nuirition 93,045 - 52,634 52,312 -
Senior Nutrition 93.053 - 13,067 13,067 -
Total Depariment of Meatth and Humam Services 101,937 101,615 -
Tolal $ 4,170,685 ] 994,663 3 202,810
Motes:

The Sehedule of Expendilures of Federal Awards is prepared using the modified accrual basls of accounting, which is the same basis used in
prepating the basic financial statements.
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An Accountaney Corporalion

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Yreka, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major
fund of the City of Yreka as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City of
Yreka's basic financial statements, and have issued our report therecn dated February 28, 2010. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
Genera! of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Yreka's internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Yreka's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an apinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Yreka's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normat course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City
of Yreka's ability to initiate, authorize, record, pracess, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of
the City of Yreka's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
City of Yreka's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by
the City of Yreka's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal controi that might be
significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Yreka's financial statements are free of material

misstatements, we performed tests of it's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncampliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, and federal awarding
agencies and pass through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

hY
}3@ e, Gesorriah § 1 aichen
Aielio, Goodrich & Teuscher
An Accountancy Corporation
Mt. Shasta, California
February 28, 2010
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An Accountancy Corporalion

REFORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRGULAR A-133

To the City Council
City of Yreka, California

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Yreka with the types of compliance requirements deseribed in the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The City of Yreka's major programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the aceompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Yreka's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City of Yreka's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

- States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local

.. Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Gircutar A-133 require that we plan and

{ \‘3 perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance

" requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Yreka's compliance with those

requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City of Yreka's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinian, the City of Yreka complied, in all material respects, with requirements referred to above that are
appiicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009,

Internal Control Over Compiliance

The management of the City of Yreka is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Yreka's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Yreka's internal control over compliance,

A contral deficiency in an entity’s internal control over com pliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfarming their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect noncompliance with g type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remnote likelihood that nancompiiance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

S

\_
A material weakness s a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than

aremote likelihood that a material noncompiiance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented or detected by the City of Yreka's internal control.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the entity's internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, and federal awarding
agencles and pass through agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Allo, Cocdriah & Teumrhe.,

Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher
An Accountancy Corporation
Mt. Shasta, Califarnia
February 28, 2010
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City of Yreka, California
Schedule Of Findings And Questioned Costs
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009

Summary of Auditors’ Results

1, The auditors' reporl expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements on the City of Yreka,
California.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Report On
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of
Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.

3. Noinstances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of City of Yreka, California which would
be required to be reported in accordance with Gavernment Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the
audit.

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal awards programs are reporied in the
Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program And On internal Control Over
Compliance Reguired By OMB Circular A-133.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Yreks, California
expresses an unqualified opinion on all major programs.

6. There are no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133 are reporied in this schedule.

7. The program tested as a major program was:
-Community Development Block Grant/State's Programs CFDA # 14.228

8. The threshold used to distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $300,000.
9. City of Yreka, California did not qualify as a low risk auditee.

Findings-Financial Statement Audit

None.

Findings and Questioned Costs-Major Federal Award Programs Audil

None.

Summary of Prior Audit Findings

2008-1- Subrecipient Monitoring

Condition and Criteria: A subrecipient was not monitored in accordance with the *Compliance Supplement” of
OMB Circular A-133.

Effect; Violations of grant agreements may be occurring which could cause guestioned costs.
Cause: Procedures are not in place to determine which subrecipients should be monitored.

Auditors' Recommendation: City officials should implement policies and procedures for subrecipient monitoring.
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Auditee Response: Yreka City staff meets regularly with subrecipients on program activities, However, there are
areas where the City can improve its subrecipient monitoring compiiance. Specifically, at award of the contract
and monitoring during the contract award period. The Finance Director will:

1. Annually review subrecipient audit reparts and prepare a summary repori to the City Manager and City
Council of subrecipient performance, including but not limited to:

(a) audit findings with corrective actions,

{b) a statement of overall fiscal health, and
{c) subrecipient’s history of program history of compliance with federal grant awards.

2. City siaff will make site visits to the subrecipients facility, request more detail on subrecipient performance
aclivity monitoring reports by activity, and continue to maintain City staffs’ regular contact with the
subrecipient(s).

Resolution: Corrected.
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